
September 8, 2014

The East Lampeter Township Board of Supervisors met on Monday, September 8, 2014, at 
7:30 p.m. at the East Lampeter Township Office: 2250 Old Philadelphia Pike, Lancaster, PA 
17602. The meeting was called to order by Mr. John Blowers, Chairman and was followed by 
the Pledge of Allegiance. In addition to Mr. Blowers, supervisors present were: Mr. Glenn 
Eberly, Mr. Corey Meyer and Mr. Ethan Demme. Mr. Dave Buckwalter was absent.  Also 
present was Mr. Ralph Hutchison, Township Manager.

The following persons signed in as being present in the audience:

Ruth Ann Bailey, 851 Gail Place, Lancaster, PA 17601, representing People versus Noise
John Coldiron, 136 Farm View Dr, Oxford, PA 19363, representing Municipal Solutions
Dave Schaller, 122 Crest Ave, Lancaster, PA 17602, representing Crest Avenue Neighbors
Tina McGinnis, 650 Bentley Ridge Blvd, Lancaster, PA, representing High Associates
Bruce Paul, 112 Crestmont Avenue, Lancaster, PA 17602
Ron Nolt, 122 Waterfront Estate Drive
Bert Kunkle, 823 Hornig Road
Mr. Bill Breigel, representing Keystone Custom Homes
Frank Carano, 1670 Lincoln Highway East, Lancaster, PA 17602
John Weese, Harbor Engineering, Manheim, PA, representing Dr. Carano
John Pogue, LRHA, representing the Gary & Bertha Kunkle
Lynn Commero, representing Lancaster Newspapers

Minutes of the August 19, 2014 Regular Meeting

Chairman Blowers asked if there were any additions or corrections regarding the minutes of the
August 19, 2014 regular meeting as prepared. 

A motion was made by Mr. Meyer to dispense with the reading of the minutes and approve the 
minutes as presented. Mr. Demme seconded the motion and the motion was passed by 
unanimous voice vote.

Bills:

Chairman Blowers indicated that bills to be paid from various funds in the amount of
$1,040,333.79 were presented for payment. Chairman Blowers discussed some of the larger items 
included in that amount was a payment in the amount of $7,080.69 to Lancaster County Tax 
Claim Bureau for delinquent taxes on a property the Township is trying to purchase at 2557 Old 
Philadelphia Pike, a payment in the amount of $654,069.42 to Fulton Financial Advisors for the 
2014 East Lampeter Sewer Authority Bond principal and interest payment, a payment in the 
amount of $14,700.00 to each of the Township’s four fire companies for quarterly contributions 
totaling $58,800.00, a payment in the amount of $8,212.00 to Lancaster County for semi-annual 
contribution to the Lancaster County Drug Task Force, a payment in the amount of $7,187.50 to 
Lancaster Public Library for quarterly contribution, a payment in the amount of $61,000.00 to 
Morgan Stanley for monthly minimum municipal obligation deposit to pensions: $52,000 to the 
police pension, $9,000 to the non-uniform pension, a payment to Pennsy Supply in the amount of 



$19,658.32 for the Township’s portion of the paving project at Coreopsis and Lupine Drive for 
curb replacement, a payment in the amount of $104,609.30 to Pennsy Supply for ADA ramps 
and paving for the project at Coreopsis and Lupine Drive, and a payment in the amount of 
$38,915.38 to John Deere Financial for the 2014 annual installment for the purchase of the 
grader.

A motion was made by Mr. Eberly and seconded by Mr. Meyer to approve the payment of the bills 
as listed in the amount of $1,040,333.79. The motion was passed by unanimous voice vote.

Old Business:

a. Financial Security Release Request – Manheim Car King: 2051 Lincoln Highway East

Chairman Blowers asked if anyone was present for this agenda item.  No one was present.

Mr. Blowers stated that the current balance is $4,380.93. The recommended reduction amount is 
$4,380.93 leaving a balance of $0.00.

Mr. Eberly made a motion to approve the Financial Security Release for Manheim Car King: 
2051 Lincoln Highway East in the amount of $4,380.93. Mr. Meyer seconded the motion and it 
was passed by unanimous voice vote.                         

b. Financial Security Reduction Request – Volleyball Corner: 2007 Lincoln Highway East

Chairman Blowers asked if anyone was present for this agenda item. No one was present.

Mr. Blowers stated that the current balance is $79,856.00.  The recommended reduction is 
$63,056.70 leaving a balance of $16,799.30.  He stated that the Township engineer had some 
items that needed to be addressed.

Mr. Meyer made a motion to approve the Financial Security Reduction Request for Volleyball 
Corner: 2007 Lincoln Highway East in the amount of $63,056.70 leaving a balance of 
$16,799.30 as recommended by the Township engineer.  Mr. Eberly seconded the motion and it 
was passed by unanimous voice vote.

c. Planning Commission Recommendation for Road Improvement Standards

Chairman Blowers asked Mr. Hutchison to review this agenda item.

Mr. Hutchison stated that the Board previously had discussed a subdivision plan from Mr. Isaac 
Stoltzfus near the intersection of Hartman Station Road and Flory Road. The ordinance would 
require road frontage improvements for this project that would involve widening and curbing.  
The applicant had asked for those improvements to be waived.  The Board had a discussion and 
granted a time extension for action and asked the Planning Commission to review the ordinance 
standards for road improvements in particular out in the rural and agricultural areas of the 
Township.  The property had been preserved through the Lancaster Farmland Trust.  The 



Planning Commission reviewed the ordinance and received input from the applicant’s consultant 
on recommendations on changes to the ordinance.  The Planning Commission suggested 
language changes in the ordinance that would change how properties located in the rural or 
agricultural area are treated with respect to frontage improvements.  The Planning Commission 
has made a recommendation.  He stated that if the Board decides it would like to make a change 
to the ordinance, the solicitor would prepare that change as an amendment, notify the 
neighboring Townships and the County of the change, and then be placed on the agenda for 
action to adopt. 

Mr. Blowers commented concern about improvements in the rural/agricultural district and 
supporting the use of rural lands as agricultural.  Mr. Meyer asked if applicants in the same 
situation would still have to appear before the Board. Mr. Hutchison stated that applicants would 
still have to come in to present the plan but it would eliminate the requirement for frontage 
approvals before the Board.  Mr. Eberly expressed his concern about not installing curbs and 
sidewalks.  Mr. Blowers asked what the surrounding municipalities do about improvements in a 
rural zone. Mr. Hutchison stated that he did not know and that it would have to be researched.  
Mr. Blowers stated that he feels the Township needs to be consistent with neighboring 
municipalities.  Mr. Demme asked about the difference in the language between the applicant’s 
and the planning commission recommendation. Mr. Hutchison stated that other types of uses are 
allowed in the rural/agricultural area for example a church or school that would still require 
curbs and sidewalks. Mr. Demme asked what the impact would be on the zoning ordinance.  
Mr. Hutchison stated that the requirements are in the Subdivision Land Development Ordinance 
and once it is changed there would be no need to change the zoning ordinance.

Mr. Demme made a motion to prepare a SALDO amendment per the Planning Commission’s 
recommendation for Municipalities Planning Code process.  Mr. Meyer seconded the motion and 
it was passed with a vote of three in favor and one against.   

d. Re: Falls at Old Mill Update: Mr. Bill Breigel

Chairman Blowers noted that Mr. Breigel is in attendance with an update on the Falls at Old 
Mill. 

Mr. Briegel, representing Keystone Custom Homes, stated that they started repairs 
approximately 3 weeks ago.  He stated that they have removed/replace concrete defects. They are 
scheduled to do pressure testing on sanitary sewer on the twelfth and are on track to pave the 
roads by the end of October.  

Mr. Meyer asked about communication to the residents. Mr. Briegel stated that they are using 
flyers and emails to let owners know about repair work.  He has received no complaints.  
Mr. Blowers asked if there was any movement on the emergency access.  Mr. Briegel stated that 
they will revisit that at a later date.

New Business:

a. Kunkle Subdivision Plan #14-18: 821 Hornig Road



Chairman Blowers asked if anyone was present for this agenda item.  Mr. John Pogue was 
present.

Mr. Pogue, representing Gary & Bertha Kunkle, stated the applicants are proposing to convey a 
portion of Lot 2 to existing Lot 1.  Lot 1 has a single family dwelling while Lot 2 is vacant.  He 
stated they are requesting a waiver of the preliminary plan and deferral of roadway 
improvements.  He stated that the applicant is willing to sign a deferral agreement.

Ms. Bertha Kunkle addressed the Board. She appreciates the time and consideration of 
continuing the deferral.  She stated that her request is a simple boundary line change that they 
couldn’t afford to do. She stated that putting in the sidewalks will be a financial hardship to her 
and her neighbors.  She would appreciate deferring it until it is necessary.  She stated that 
currently the lots are not marketable but she has no current plans for selling or development. 

After a discussion about sidewalks, Mr. Eberly made a motion to conditionally approve the 
Kunkle Subdivision Plan #14-18: 821 Hornig Road subject to the Lancaster County Planning 
Commission and Township Engineer’s review comments except 2, 3 and 4 deferred until 
required by the Township or if any improvements are made to 821 Hornig Road.  Mr. Meyer
seconded the motion and it was passed by unanimous voice vote.  

b. Carano Dentistry Land Development Plan #14-19: 1670 Lincoln Highway East

Chairman Blowers asked if anyone was present for this agenda item.  Mr. John Weese was 
present.

Mr. Weese, representing Carano Dentistry, stated that the applicant has submitted a revised final 
land development plan to substantiate the original approval of the plan around 2007.  The 
Planning Commission recommended approval. The applicant is requesting two waivers of the 
plan scale and the curbing along the back of the property.  

Mr. Carano stated that upon adding an additional tenant he discovered that he was not in 
compliance with the Township. They are working on bringing things into compliance.

Mr. Weese reviewed the David Miller Associates letter dated September 5, 2014. He stated that 
they had to rearrange the parking to make up a deficiency.  He discussed extending the curb the 
length of the two parallel parking spaces and waiver of the remainder curbing.  He reviewed the 
financial security stating the probable cost should be $6,952.00.  He discussed the ownership and 
maintenance program for Stormwater Management stating that the agreement needs to be 
finalized.  He discussed the site observation comment regarding Bituminous Wearing Course 
being provided on the upper parking lot and not on the lower parking lot.  He stated the revised 
final plan has been updated to note that the lower parking lot is to be paved with Bituminous 
Wearing Course. He also pointed out that the plan should include a wearing course paving detail 
and a paving notch detail to tie into the existing driveway.  He then reviewed the Lancaster 
County Planning Commission letter dated August 26, 2014.  Mr. Weese and the Board discussed 
the issue of the clear sight triangle and Mr. Hutchison suggested that there be a 100 foot clear 



sight triangle be shown at the public street intersection. He discussed the site location being in 
the Urban Growth Area and the recommendation for a sidewalk along Reese Avenue.

After a discussion, Mr. Eberly made a motion to conditionally approve the Carano Dentistry 
Land Development Plan #14-19: 1670 Lincoln Highway East with the two waivers subject to the 
Lancaster County Planning Commission and the Township Engineer’s review comments and 
adding a clear sight triangle at Reese and Lincoln Highway and require a deferral agreement for 
sidewalk on Reese Avenue.  Mr. Meyer seconded the motion and it was passed by unanimous 
voice vote.

c. Beiler Stormwater Management Plan #14-21: 2061 Jarvis Road

Chairman Blowers asked if anyone was present for this agenda item. No one was present.

Mr. Hutchison stated that the applicant’s consulting engineer called to say he would be unable to 
attend tonight’s meeting.  He stated the consultant was comfortable with the Board tabling this 
agenda item to another meeting.  Mr. Meyer made a motion to table. Mr. Eberly asked if the 
consultant had any concern about any of the items. Mr. Hutchison stated that he was unaware of 
any concerns.  

Mr. Meyer made a motion to conditionally approve the Beiler Stormwater Management Plan 
#14-21: 2061 Jarvis Road subject to the Township Engineer’s review comments.  Mr. Eberly 
seconded the motion and it was passed by unanimous voice vote.

d. Review of Pequea Valley Strategic Plan

Chairman Blowers asked Mr. Hutchison to introduce this agenda item.

Mr. Hutchison stated that the Township had received a copy of the strategic plan that had been 
prepared for the Pequea Valley region which abuts East Lampeter Township along the municipal 
boundaries with Leacock Township and Paradise Township.  The normal process for land use 
items is that surrounding municipalities get 45 days to review and comment. The Township 
received their copy last week.  The County Planning Commission is planning to complete their 
review and issue their comments at their meeting on September 22. Due to the Board not having
another meeting in September, staff felt it was prudent to try to gather comments and reactions to 
present to them before their meeting.  Ms. Hitchens and I reviewed the document and identified a 
few areas that we felt needed mentioned.  He stated there was no mention of the Bird In Hand 
area and the shared issues with Leacock Township in that area. There was no mention of Route 
30.  The Leacock Tourism Plan related to the streetscape project should be coordinated between 
the Townships.  

Mr. Demme made a motion to authorize sending comment letters to the Pequea Valley Region 
under Chairman Blowers signature.  Mr. Eberly seconded the motion and it was passed by 
unanimous voice vote.

Other Business:



a. Request to use Township Roads – Spina Bifida Association Run/Walk/Roll: 10/4/14

Chairman Blowers asked if anyone was present for this agenda item. No one was present.

Mr. Blowers stated that the Spina Bifida Association would like to hold its 12th annual event on 
Saturday, October 4, 2014 from 8 am to 11 am at the Greenfield Corporate Center.  He stated 
none of the roads are closed and are marshaled at every intersection. He asked if our police 
department is aware of this event. Mr. Hutchison stated that we notify them.  

Mr. Meyer made a motion to approve the use of Township roads for the Spina Bifida Association 
Run/Walk/Roll on October 4, 2014.  Mr. Eberly seconded the motion and it was passed by 
unanimous voice vote.

b. Request to use Township Road – Fritz Elementary School: 11/1/14

Chairman Blowers asked if anyone was present for this agenda item. No one was present.

Mr. Blowers stated that the Fritz Elementary School would like to have 5K event on Saturday, 
November 1, 2014 at 10 am at the Worship Center. Mr. Eberly asked if the roads would be 
closed. Mr. Hutchison stated that the roads are not closed. Mr. Demme asked if this route was 
done before. Mr. Hutchison stated this is a first time event.  

Mr. Meyer made a motion to approve the use of Township roads for Fritz Elementary School 
PTO 5K on November 1, 2014 subject to approval from Upper Leacock Township and certificate 
of insurance.  Mr. Demme seconded the motion and it was passed by unanimous voice vote.  

c. Reappointment to ELSA: 5 year term ending 9/7/19 – Mr. Wayne Beaner

Mr. Eberly made a motion to approve the reappointment of Mr. Wayne Beaner to the East 
Lampeter Township Sewer Authority for a 5 year term ending September 9, 2019.  Mr. Demme 
seconded the motion and it was passed by unanimous voice vote.

d. Note and Mortgage re: 2557 Old Philadelphia Pike

Mr. Hutchison stated that the estate is in ownership of the property. They have been unable to 
pay the real estate taxes on the property which makes it eligible for tax sale.  The Township has 
an agreement with the estate and has an interest in maintaining that agreement and purchasing 
the property once the DCNR funds are granted to the Township. The Township was advised by 
Counsel to pay the outstanding taxes. The estate signs a note and mortgage in favor of the 
Township that would be a credit to the Township at time of settlement.  The mortgage protects 
the Township.  

Mr. Meyer made a motion to approve the Note and Mortgage for 2557 Old Philadelphia Pike.  
Mr. Demme seconded the motion and it was passed by unanimous voice vote.



e. Property Maintenance Code Adoption and Inspection Program

Mr. Hutchison stated that the Board had discussed at the August 19, 2014 meeting about the need 
for a Property Maintenance Code and the potential for adopting an ordinance to put the code into 
effect.  It was decided to continue the discussion at the September 8, 2014 meeting where the 
Board would determine whether to move forward with preparing an ordinance and advertising 
the ordinance for action or gathering more information.  

Mr. Blowers stated that staff has made presentations of challenges that East Lampeter Township 
is having with its hotel and motel properties.  The Township has received numerous calls and 
letters of complaints.  The Board asked staff how the Township could address these issues.  He 
stated that Mr. Demme and Mr. Nolt have been working on how to address the issues by 
implementing the International Property Maintenance Code.  The Board has been considering 
some action on how to put in place a standard for property maintenance and how to apply it.  

Mr. Demme stated that he recommends that the Township adopt the International Property 
Maintenance Code and establish a committee to develop an annual inspection program for 
certain uses for example hotels and motels.  Mr. Meyer asked if the Township adopts the code if 
it would be purely complaint based.  Mr. Demme stated yes.  Mr. Blowers stated that he asked 
Mr. Hutchison to have staff survey municipalities if they have a property maintenance code. He 
stated that Upper Leacock Township, Paradise Township, Lancaster Township, Mount Joy 
Borough, Manheim Borough, Ephrata Township, Elizabethtown Borough and the City of 
Lancaster all have a property maintenance code or ordinance by complaint basis.  Mr. Demme 
stated that most municipalities of a certain size adopt some sort of property maintenance code. 
Mr. Eberly asked if this is the only guideline available to establish a standard. Mr. Hutchison 
stated that he is not familiar with any others. Mr. Eberly asked if we would have to establish a 
procedure for enforcement. Mr. Hutchison stated that the Township would have to set up a 
procedural structure if the Board adopts the code.  He then discussed the possible procedural 
steps.  The Board had a lengthy discussion on adopting the International Property Maintenance 
Code.

Mr. Demme made a motion to authorize staff to advertise an ordinance to adopt the International 
Property Maintenance Code at the October 6, 2014 meeting on a complaint basis effective 
December 1, 2014.  Mr. Meyer seconded the motion and it was passed by unanimous voice vote.

Mr. Demme made a motion to appoint a special committee to review information to form an 
annual inspection program under the International Property Maintenance Code. Mr. Demme 
asked if there should be a timeline.  Mr. Blowers stated that the Board should form a committee 
and appoint one of the Board members to chair that committee and come back to the Board with 
a recommendation of how the committee will be formed, the members of the committee, what 
the timeline would be before the December 1, 2014 date.  Mr. Demme stated that the timeline 
would be forming the committee, having some public hearings and getting feedback, working 
with staff on what is feasible and recommendations for the Board in February of 2015 for the 
Board to potentially draft an ordinance to adopt later in 2015.  Mr. Demme then made a motion 
to appoint a special committee to review information to form an annual inspection program 



under the International Property Maintenance Code with himself as chairman.  Mr. Blowers 
seconded the motion and it was passed by unanimous voice vote.

f. Draft Fire Service Funding Plan – Discussion

Chairman Blowers stated that this was a discussion item not an action item.  He had staff prepare 
a packet of information.  He stated he presented this to the Emergency Services Committee at 
their August 21, 2014 meeting.  He will be getting final comments and feedback from the 
committee at their next meeting on September 25, 2014.  He anticipates having a proposal on the 
October 6, 2014 Board’s agenda to adopt a funding plan for the Emergency Services Committee 
for 2015.  

Mr. Eberly asked questions about the percentages for the Fire Apparatus Replacement Schedule. 
Mr. Blowers stated the committee is currently looking to adopt an updated apparatus replacement 
schedule with no more than three apparatus allowed to be purchased with the help of Township 
funds. Mr. Demme asked about the process for determining which type of apparatus to purchase 
and when.  Mr. Blowers stated that it goes through the Emergency Services Committee.  He 
stated all four fire companies work together to plan out what needs purchased and when.  Mr. 
Meyer questioned how the Township would “finance” the apparatus purchases. Mr. Hutchison 
stated that the Township would set aside an amount of funding each year in a separate account 
and as the apparatus purchases are needed funds will come out of that account to cover the 
Township’s share.  The Board discussed other possible means of financing the purchases. The 
Board discussed the annual Township contributions and the need to support the fire companies.  
Mr. Nolt and Mr. Paul discussed with the Board the need for new apparatus to meet the NFPA 
guidelines and their appreciation for all the Township contributes.  

g. Draft Resolution – Recognition of Fire Prevention Week and Fire Service Volunteers

Chairman Blowers asked Mr. Hutchison to prepare a resolution for recognizing National Fire 
Prevention Week: October 5 through October 11, 2014 and establishing a recognition program 
for fire service volunteers. Mr. Blowers then read the resolution.

Mr. Demme made a motion to adopt the Resolution #2014-13 for Recognizing Fire Prevention 
Week and Establishing a Recognition Program for Fire Service Volunteers.  Mr. Meyer seconded 
the motion and it was passed by unanimous voice vote.

Resolution #2014-13

Public Comment:

Mr. John Coldiron introduced himself.  He stated that his company is on the Township list as a 
third party agency for enforcing the construction code and is familiar with the International 
Property Maintenance Code.  He would like to request that the Township expand the residential 
inspection program to include multiple agencies.

Ms. Ruth Ann Bailey stated that she lives in Eastwood Village and they are having a problem 
with noise coming from Keystone Granite and Tile, 109 Olde Homestead Lane, from 7 am to



11 pm.  The noise is a high shrill and is extremely noisy and is affecting the quality of life of 
Eastwood Village residents.  There is dust on neighboring property from the sanding and 
grinding.  She wrote a letter to Steve High concerning an article she had read in the High Spirit 
Magazine.  She stated the problem started this summer.  They have the doors open.  She would 
like to know what the Township can do about the noise.  Mr. Hutchison stated that he will make 
contact with the company and make them aware of the problem.  The Board thanked Ms. Bailey 
for bringing this to their attention.

Ms. Tina McGinnis introduced herself. She stated she is the Regional Manager for High 
Associates.  She stated she is on the Board of Apartment Association of Central PA and is 
interested in serving on the Inspection Committee.  She believes in instituting a complaint base 
system.

Mr. Dave Schaller introduced himself. He expressed his concern about the commercial business 
that is in his development.  He stated that he and the neighbors have been working with the Joe 
Hainthaler from Lancaster Newspaper. He stated that they contacted Pennsylvania Department of 
State Corporation Bureaus in Harrisburg.  He gave them the name and they stated that he is a 
licensed contractor at 8 Crest Avenue.  He would like to see his construction equipment removed 
from the property.  Mr. Hutchison stated that the first issue to attack is that there is a business 
operating at the property. Mr. Schaller stated there are several pickup trucks on the site overnight 
and the bigger trucks are being stored behind H&F Tire.  The Board thanked Mr. Schaller for the 
information.

Ms. Bailey spoke again regarding safety meetings at High Hotels.

Mr. Meyer announced that there will be a public open house for the Route 30 Streetscape 
Planning effort on September 23, 2014 from 5:30 pm to 7:00 pm. Public is invited.

Adjournment:

A motion was made by Mr. Demme and seconded by Mr. Eberly to adjourn the meeting. The 
motion was passed by unanimous voice vote. The next regularly scheduled meeting is to be 
held on Monday, October 6, 2014 beginning at 7:30 pm.

Respectfully submitted,

Ralph Hutchison
Township Manager


































